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The Hon Chris Minns MP 
Premier of New South Wales 

Ref: D25/10916 

24 May 2025 

The Honourable Anthony Albanese MP 
Prime Minister of Australia 
PO BOX 6022 
House of Representatives 
Parliament House  
Canberra ACT 2600 

Re: East Coast Severe Weather – Disaster Recovery Funding 

Dear Prime Minister, 

I am writing to request your consideration of funding under the Disaster Recovery Funding 
Arrangements (DRFA) for the establishment of a Community Recovery Support Fund, to 
help NSW councils impacted by the recent prolonged heavy rainfall and flooding 
experienced on the East Coast of NSW. 

The NSW Government is coordinating a multi-agency response to the event, which has 
significantly impacted the Hunter and Mid-North Coast of NSW. 

Nineteen NSW Local Government Areas (LGAs) are currently forecast to bear the greatest 
impact and are the subject to a natural Disaster Declaration. These LGAs are: 

• Armidale Regional Council

• Bellingen Shire Council

• Central Coast Council

• Cessnock City Council

• Clarence Valley Council

• Coffs Harbour City Council

• Dungog Shire Council

• Kempsey Shire Council

• Lake Macquarie City Council

• Maitland City Council

• Mid-Coast Council

• Muswellbrook Shire Council

• Nambucca Valley Council

• Newcastle City Council

• Port Macquarie-Hastings Council

• Port Stephens Council

• Singleton Council

• Upper Hunter Shire Council
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• Walcha Council  

 

 

 

To support Councils in these areas, the NSW Government is proposing establishment of a 
 Community Recovery Support Fund, under Category C of the DRFA. This will 

allow for allocations of up to $1 million to affected councils to support immediate recover 
activities, with a small contingency to provide additional support to the councils most 
severely affected. 

I am advised that officers from the NSW Reconstruction Authority have provided draft 
program guidelines and the required application forms to support your consideration and 
approval. 

I look forward to your consideration and ongoing collaboration to support the NSW 
communities impacted by this event.  

 

Sincerely, 

Chris Minns MP  
Premier of New South Wales  
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The Hon Chris Minns MP 
Premier of New South Wales 

Ref: D25/3811 
30 May 2025 

The Honourable Anthony Albanese MP 
Prime Minister of Australia 
PO BOX 6022 
House of Representatives 
Parliament House  
Canberra ACT 2600 

Re: Assistance measures for Tropical Cyclone Alfred and NSW East Coast severe weather 
event AGRN 1212 under Categories C and D of the Disaster Recovery Funding Arrangements 

Dear Prime Minister, 

Thank you for your letter dated 26 May approving the $19 million Community Recovery 
Support Fund. This funding will provide time critical assistance to affected councils as they 
commence the immediate clean-up of their communities and start the process of recovery 
across the Mid North Coast of NSW. 

Recovery across the Hunter and Mid North Coast regions of NSW has commenced and the 
community needs the combined support of the Commonwealth and State Governments to 
effectivity recover. Already we have activated the Disaster Recovery Funding Arrangements 
in support of the community and I thank the Commonwealth Government for its support.  

I am writing to request your consideration for additional funding under Categories C and D 
of the DRFA to support recovery from severe flooding which impacted the Mid North Coast 
of NSW. I am also writing to request funding support for DRFA programs in support of 
recovery from Ex-Tropical Cyclone Alfred. As you would be aware, some local government 
areas have been impacted by both events.  

The specific assistance measures proposed are outlined below: 
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Ex TC Alfred AGRN 1198 

Category C Measures 

Small Business and Not-for-Profit Recovery Grant 
Grants will support small businesses and not-for-profit organisations affected by AGRN 
1198, facilitating the clean-up and restoration of their premises and accelerating community 
recovery. 

• Total funding:  over the 2024–25 to 2026–27 financial years

• DRFA eligibility:

• Administration: Service NSW, via a funding agreement with the NSW Reconstruction
Authority.

Primary Producer Recovery Grant 
Grants of up to $25,000 will be available to eligible primary producers directly impacted by 
AGRN 1198, particularly those whose viability has been compromised and where production 
disruptions may extend beyond the current season. This is in line with measures which were 
activated by the Queensland Government. 

• Total funding:  over the 2024–25 to 2026–27 financial years

• DRFA eligibility:

• Administration: NSW Rural Assistance Authority, via a funding agreement with the
NSW Reconstruction Authority.

Category D Measures 

Primary Industries Support Fund – Drainage Reset Program 

 will be available to undertake restoration of drainage assets impacted by 
TC Alfred.  This work will ensure future storm impacts are reduced on these lands. 

• Total funding:  over the 2025–25 to 2026–27 financial years

• DRFA eligibility: 

• Administration: NSW Reconstruction Authority.
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NSW East Coast Severe Weather event – AGRN 1212 

Category C Measures 

Small Business and Not-for-Profit Recovery Grant 
Grants will provide support for small businesses and not-for-profit organisations affected 
by AGRN 1212, assisting with clean-up and restoration efforts. 

• Total funding: Up to  over the 2024–25 to 2026–27 financial years

• DRFA eligibility:

• Administration: Service NSW, via a funding agreement with the NSW Reconstruction
Authority.

Primary Producer Recovery Grant 
Grants of up to $25,000 will be provided to eligible primary producers impacted by AGRN 
1212, whose operations and viability have been significantly affected and where production 
disruptions may extend beyond the current season. 

• Total funding:  over the 2024–25 to 2026–27 financial years

• DRFA eligibility:

• Administration: NSW Rural Assistance Authority, via a funding agreement with the
NSW Reconstruction Authority.

Category D Measures 

Rural Landholder Grant 
Grants of up to $10,000 will assist rural landholders who have experienced direct asset 
damage from AGRN 1212. This measure targets small-scale agricultural areas suffering 
widespread impacts, aiming to relieve financial hardship and support economic recovery. 
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• Total funding:  over the 2024–25 to 2026–27 financial years 

• DRFA eligibility:  
 

• Administration: NSW Rural Assistance Authority, via funding agreement with the 
NSW Reconstruction Authority. 

 

As detailed in previous correspondence from Senator the Hon Jenny McAllister, the then 
Minister for Emergency Management, to the Hon Jihad Dib MP, NSW Minister for 
Emergency Services, the Commonwealth requires Category C and D programs to be pre-
approved by the Commonwealth in writing to be eligible for funding under the DRFA.  

In addition, the NSW Government will work with the National Emergency Management 
Agency to deliver an emergency and temporary accommodation assistance package under 
Category A of the DRFA as part of the initial response to AGRN 1212.   

Moreover, given the assessment of damage is ongoing, it is likely that NSW will need to 
update cost estimates for these programs.  Delaying the provision of support while these 
damage assessments are finalised is not practical and would result in delays providing NSW 
communities the urgent support they need.  For this reason, I seek your agreement to 
proceed with the programs based on the best cost estimates currently available outlined in 
this letter, but request your in-principle support to revisit these estimates if required. 

Thank you again, your ongoing support for the people of NSW, and specifically our 
impacted regional and rural communities, is greatly appreciated. 

 

Sincerely, 

The Hon. Chris Minns MP  
Premier of New South Wales  
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I also acknowledge the specific healthcare plan for the ACT, including delivering three new fully 
bulked billed GP practices, securing the future of the Interchange Health Co-Op in Tuggeranong and 
funding to deliver more aged care respite beds in the ACT. The ACT Minister for Health has already 
been in contact with the Federal Health Minister to advise that the ACT Government has secured a 
two-year extension to the Burrangiri Aged Care Respite Centre to enable the Commonwealth to 
deliver on its commitment of at least 15 dedicated residential respite beds by 1 July 2027.  

The tertiary education sector is one of the ACT’s largest employment bases outside of the public 
sector and is our largest export industry. As an important sector for our economy, it is imperative 
that we work together to support a sustainable future for our universities. I am working closely with 
the new vice chancellor of the University of Canberra on partnership opportunities. As ANU is 
established under Commonwealth legislation, I want to work with you to restore ANUs status as the 
premier national university.  UNSW is about to begin construction on a new $1 billion city campus 
which further expand the Group of Eight university presence in Canberra, and bring up to 6000 
students once it is finished.   

With such a strong university presence, international students are critical to the sustainability of the 
sector. The ACT is uniquely placed given we have a surplus of student accommodation and is a 
welcoming city.  I want to work with the Australian Government to collectively market Canberra as 
an attractive destination for international students. 

I am keen to work closely with your government to ensure the ACT can deliver its share of the 
100,000 new homes committed to during the election. As a city-state the ACT Government is 
uniquely positioned to expedite approvals and harness opportunities that will maximise outcomes 
for our suburbs and precincts. I seek your support to ensure the design of this and other 
Commonwealth programs do not inadvertently disadvantage the ACT due to criteria that does not 
accommodate the ACT’s dual role as both a state government and a local government. 

I look forward to meeting over the coming months to continuine our collaborative relationship in 
your new term of government and to identifying and securing federal investment for our nation’s 
capital. 

Congratulations again on your re-election. 

Yours sincerely 

Andrew Barr MLA 
Chief Minister  

14 May 2025
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